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          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. Welcome to today's hearing, Civil Service

          4  and Labor.  My name is Joe Addabbo.  I am the Chair

          5  of the Committee and I welcome you all here today.

          6                 Today we will be discussing Intro

          7  507, again, an Intro that looks to amend the

          8  Administrative Code, I believe, bear with me, to

          9  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         10  York in relation to workplace injury, in reporting

         11  requirements.  And again, I welcome you all here.

         12                 In January of 2005, a local law went

         13  into effect requiring all City agencies to regularly

         14  document specific information with respect to

         15  employee workers compensation injuries, and to

         16  report this information in an annual report.  It was

         17  intended that these annual reports would provide

         18  information that would help the City take necessary

         19  precautions to reduce the number and severity of

         20  workplace injuries, which would in turn, help the

         21  City save money and increase worker productivity, as

         22  well as more effectively administer Workmen's

         23  Compensation claims.

         24                 The first time the report was issued,

         25  April 28th, 2006 for the calendar year of 2005, and
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          2  was approximately 500 pages long.  At a December

          3  2006 hearing, this Committee proposed that a

          4  Executive Summary and index be included in future

          5  reports.  A second timely annual report was released

          6  for the 2006 calendar year, and that did include an

          7  Executive Summary and index.  And we are thankful.

          8                 Intro 507 seeks to improve the annual

          9  report even further by requiring additional cost of

         10  claims information by actually requiring an

         11  Executive Summary and index, by requiring the report

         12  to be delivered in written and electronic format,

         13  and a year by year comparison of worker's

         14  compensation claims.

         15                 In short, Intro 507 seeks to make the

         16  annual report on work place compensation injuries a

         17  more useful tool in the attempt to save the City

         18  some money, increase worker productivity and make

         19  the work place and environment, a safer place for

         20  our City workers.

         21                 And again, I thank everyone's efforts

         22  on this report.  We are again, thankful for the work

         23  that went into it.  I also want, at this point, to

         24  thank Council Member Jim Gennaro, who really

         25  spearheaded this issue from its beginning, and

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  working with this Committee,  And Jim, Councilman

          3  Gennaro, thank you very much, and I believe Council

          4  Member Gennaro has a statement.  Thank you so much.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman. And certainly I played a role, but we

          7  wouldn't have passed this the first time, and we

          8  wouldn't be back here today, if not for your

          9  leadership.  So, I thank you, Chairman Addabbo.  And

         10  certainly as a fellow Committee Chair, I recognize

         11  that the Chairman has a lot of requests for hearings

         12  and bills and the fact that he's taking time to work

         13  with this bill.  I'm very, very grateful for that.

         14  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 I certainly want to thank all of the

         16  unions and people who are sensitive to work place

         17  safety for not only being around the first time when

         18  we moved this bill, but for staying with it and

         19  working with it and see how it works, and figuring

         20  out ways to make it better.  And so, you're all a

         21  part of this and we thank the good folks that are

         22  here today.  I'd like to, Central Labor Council, Ed

         23  Ott, folks from NYCOSH, UFT, DC37, CWA 1180, my

         24  former Union, I was a member of 1180 when I first

         25  came to City government, and Teamsters, Local 237
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          2  and others.

          3                 As the Chairman said, about three

          4  years ago, the Council passed Local Law 41, the Work

          5  Place Safety and Protection Act, and this law

          6  offered the promise of making it possible for the

          7  first time to comprehensively and accurately

          8  identify the location of high risk jobs, the nature

          9  and sources of safety and health hazards faced by

         10  City employees, and to facilitate the development of

         11  programs to reduce the number and severity of work

         12  place injuries, and promote safe and helpful

         13  conditions in the work place.  And as many of us who

         14  work on these issues know, the City pays about $180

         15  million a year in workman's comp claims, and if you

         16  add in some of the other sort of hidden costs, or

         17  whatever, you could argue that the total cost to the

         18  City in work place injuries is several times that

         19  $180 million number.

         20                 And so we did this law the first time

         21  to see if it could get a real workable document that

         22  would help the City, help the Council, help the

         23  people in Labor and the worker advocate community,

         24  focus our efforts on how to make these jobs safer.

         25  But as the Chairman indicated, and not withstanding,
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          2  the fact that we made the report better, and it's

          3  less iteration, it's not fully lived up to its

          4  promise.

          5                 So, we're hearing Intro 507 today, a

          6  bill that makes relatively modest changes to Local

          7  Law 41.  And Intro 507 would require that the

          8  underlying information collected by participating

          9  City agencies, which under Local Law 41 is supplied

         10  to the Mayor's Office for the purposes of preparing

         11  the mandated report, we would like that available to

         12  the public.  And that would make the report more

         13  meaningful, and also wouldn't really add any more

         14  work to the City, because the information is being

         15  compiled already.  And this information, we would

         16  want to be supplied in an electronic format and

         17  organized by agency, job title and for the City as a

         18  whole, and thereby enhancing the utility of the

         19  report.  We think these are modest changes, we think

         20  they're workable.  And through the modest changes,

         21  Local Law 41, Intro 507 will yield dramatic

         22  improvements in the Law's ability to meet its

         23  promise, that achieving safe and healthy conditions

         24  or safer and healthier conditions, for the City's

         25  work places, safer, healthier, happier workers, less
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          2  money paid out in workers comp.  It's all good.

          3  What's not to love?

          4                 And so with that, I thank you again,

          5  Mr. Chairman for bringing us here today and everyone

          6  who is here, to participate in this hearing.  Thank

          7  you, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

          9  Council Member Gennaro.  And again, I thank you and

         10  your efforts in regards to this issue.  Not just

         11  this bill, but the prior bills, and of course the

         12  issue, in general.  I don't think you need to bring

         13  this issue and drive the point home by coming today

         14  in crutches and showing off your injured foot.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Yes, yes.

         16  I'm showing off, I'm showing off.  I hurt my

         17  achilles, I got my crutches and is there a doctor in

         18  the house?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I think

         20  Councilman Gennaro appears on page 432 of the

         21  report.  We wouldn't know, we didn't have an index

         22  at the time.

         23                 No, but again, I do appreciate your

         24  efforts.  And of course --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  And I'm such
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          2  a show off with the whole thing, too.  I had to do

          3  it yesterday, right before today's hearing.  I have

          4  a flair for the dramatic, how do you like that?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Yes, you do.

          6  But again, we appreciate the efforts of the

          7  administration.

          8                 Just a little housekeeping here.  I

          9  want to thank Legal Counsel for the Committee, Elisa

         10  Chae, here to my left.  To my right Jeff Gottlieb,

         11  my Legislative Aid here at City Hall.  The Sergeant-

         12  at- Arms today, keeping the room in order and this

         13  unruly crowd, thank you very much, Sergeant- at-

         14  Arms.

         15                 And again, we welcome the

         16  administration here.  To start us off, John Sweeney,

         17  Chief of the Workers Compensation Division of the

         18  New York City Law Department.  Thank you very much,

         19  Mr. Sweeney.  And Andrea Berger, again, New York

         20  City Law Department.

         21                 Just before you start, I also want to

         22  make note, we will acknowledge Council members as

         23  they come in.  Just to make one note, Council Member

         24  Mike Nelson, who is a member of this Committee, is

         25  Chairing the Waterfronts Committee across the
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          2  street, so he will probably not be here.  But I just

          3  want to acknowledge that he is a Chair for a

          4  Committee, that's currently going on at 250

          5  Broadway.

          6                 So, again, thank you very much to the

          7  administration for being here today and please just

          8  state your name for the record and give your

          9  testimony.

         10                 MR. SWEENEY:  I'm John Sweeney, Chief

         11  of the Workers Compensation Division of the New York

         12  City Law Department. Thank you for asking me to be

         13  here today.

         14                 I submit this testimony in response

         15  to your request for comments on Intro 507, for the

         16  reasons set forth below.  The Law Department and the

         17  administration strongly oppose this bill.

         18                 This bill would modify the contents

         19  of the annual report of Workers Compensation

         20  injuries, required by Local Law 41 of 2004.  The

         21  bill would broaden the scope of the report now

         22  required, and would further mandate publication of

         23  the minute details of all new Workers Compensation

         24  claims.

         25                 Each year, the Workers Compensation
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          2  division receives approximately 16,000 new claims

          3  from City agency employees.  Local Law 41 enacted by

          4  the Council in 2004, mandates extensive reporting on

          5  Workers Compensation claims.  The division that I

          6  had prepared the annual report for submission to the

          7  Council Speaker, the Mayor, the Comptroller and the

          8  Public Advocate.  The report for the year 2006

          9  contains almost 500 pages of information. This

         10  series of amendments to Local Law 41 would increase

         11  the size of the report by four or five times its

         12  already significant length. The information it

         13  requires would result in a report that would be

         14  thousands of pages long, and require significant

         15  diversion of staff for preparation.  The additional

         16  reporting and concomitant burden might well be

         17  justified if the results were served to improve the

         18  Workers Compensation system.  It would not.

         19                 Some of the items that the report

         20  would require, required by Intro 507 do not even

         21  exist.  For example, Section I, proposing to amend

         22  Administrative Code 12- 127 would include claims,

         23  adjustor costs, medical billing research costs and

         24  court costs, among the items that must be reported.

         25                 We do not have claims adjustor costs.
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          2    Our claims are processed by City employees.  Their

          3  salaries are incorporated into our overall

          4  administrative costs.  The same is true of medical

          5  billing research costs.  There are none, as such.

          6  All medical bills are processed by our own staff.

          7  The reference to court costs is also very puzzling

          8  because Workers Compensation cases are adjudicated

          9  by the Workers Compensation board, not by a court.

         10  Moreover, we do not generally appear in court.  But

         11  on the rare occasions when we do, there are no

         12  appreciable costs involved.

         13                 Section II of the bill contains other

         14  troublesome amendments.  It would require

         15  publication of highly detailed information for each

         16  and every Workers Compensation claim received by

         17  this office.  Under existing law, the report

         18  contains three broad categories, date, description

         19  and location of each injury, as well as cost by

         20  agency.

         21                 The new version of the law would add

         22  to these categories the following; employee's title,

         23  date each claim was filed with the State, the date

         24  the City began payments, circumstances and diagnosis

         25  for each injury, and the length of time each
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          2  employee was unable to work, due to the injury.

          3                 It would also add five new categories

          4  of cost, some of which are non- existent and none of

          5  which are very meaningful. For example, although it

          6  is possible for us to track fraud investigation

          7  costs, the result would not be of any value.  This

          8  is because the report only deals with the first year

          9  of a claim.  The vast majority of fraud

         10  investigations are done at the last stage of the

         11  claim.  Usually when someone fails to return to

         12  work, but appears to be working elsewhere, the

         13  dollar amount of this expense, for one year, will be

         14  negligible, and will not shed any light on fraud

         15  investigation.

         16                 Similarly, although we can track

         17  legal defense costs, that is payment to outside

         18  counsel for hearings outside New York City, this

         19  will again, only produce numbers for hearings

         20  relating to a single claim year.  Such numbers will

         21  be of little or no value to anyone.

         22                 While the forgoing information

         23  currently exists in agency files, or those of the

         24  Workmens Compensation Division, and is accessible,

         25  the task of compiling all of this information and
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          2  adding it to the annual report, would be an enormous

          3  undertaking, requiring an unreasonable amount of

          4  hours of work and which would serve no useful

          5  purpose.  Obtaining information for approximately

          6  16,000 individual claims, will take dozens of people

          7  and thousands of hours.  Although some information

          8  may be obtained from computer records, certain other

          9  information would require review of individual paper

         10  files for each case.  Given the large volume of

         11  claims, this will be an impossible burden to meet,

         12  without additional staffing.  Once again, because

         13  the information requested relates to a single claim

         14  year, it will reveal very little meaningful

         15  information about overall Workers Compensation

         16  claims.

         17                 Of perhaps the greatest concern about

         18  this bill is the inclusion of job title, which

         19  alone, or coupled with location of injury, could

         20  reveal the identity of certain, primarily high level

         21  employees.  This cannot possibly be an intended

         22  result of the bill, and this would run afoul of the

         23  agency's obligation to maintain confidentiality.

         24                 Finally, the proposed effective date,

         25  June 1, 2007, falls in the middle of calendar year.
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          2  This is at odds with the report itself, which covers

          3  a calendar year.

          4                 So to summarize, this bill would

          5  impose an unwieldy burden on the agency, require the

          6  search of thousands of records, mandate reporting on

          7  categories of information that do not even exist,

          8  and threaten the confidentiality of people who are

          9  served by the Workers Compensation system.

         10                 Prior to the enactment of Local Law

         11  41, this office met with the Council staff in an

         12  attempt to devise a meaningful and informative

         13  valuable reporting requirement.  If there are

         14  specific shortcomings in the legislation, or

         15  modifications to its requirements that members of

         16  the council wish to propose, we are, as we did prior

         17  to the enactment of Local Law 41, prepared to work

         18  with the Council on drafting and implementing

         19  appropriate amendments.

         20                 I'd like to thank the Council members

         21  and the members of the Civil Service and Labor

         22  Committee for the opportunity to testify today.  I'd

         23  be happy to answer any questions you may have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         25  much, Mr. Sweeney.  Is there any other testimony at
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          2  all?  Okay.

          3                 Again, I want to thank you for your

          4  time and testimony today, as well as the efforts of

          5  the administration here.           Probably, I agree

          6  with the second to the last paragraph, where it says

          7  here, preparatory to the Council, I look forward to

          8  the continued dialog regarding this report because

          9  although I see your differences with the bill, I'm

         10  hopeful that we can work some of them out in an

         11  effort to make this a more useful tool.

         12                 And while I'm on that issue of being

         13  a useful tool, just a question back to the

         14  administration.  Do you use this information?  This

         15  is our second report, does somebody in the

         16  administration compare the numbers here to the

         17  previous report in an effort to again, save the City

         18  some dollars, increase work and productivity, make

         19  the work place a safer place?  Does somebody

         20  actually analyze the numbers or do you just turn out

         21  this document because a piece of legislation says

         22  you have to do so?

         23                 MR. SWEENEY:  My office does not

         24  analyze these numbers, as far as I know.  I'm not

         25  aware of some other offices doing it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So, you're

          3  unaware of somebody, some agency in the

          4  administration, whether it be DCAS or others,

          5  analyzing this information.

          6                 MR. SWEENEY:  No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So, as far as

          8  you know, Mr. Sweeney, this document is out and

          9  that's the end of it, as far as the administration

         10  is concerned.

         11                 MR. SWEENEY:  As far as my

         12  involvement goes, that's the end.  I can't speak for

         13  the entire administration.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  To your

         15  knowledge, there's no other --

         16                 MR. SWEENEY:  I'm not aware of anyone

         17  who's reviewing it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  That's

         19  unfortunate. Again, we were hopeful that this

         20  information, which was out there prior to us even

         21  requiring a report, this information was out there.

         22  We just, the legislation just put in a report form,

         23  but hopeful that it would be used as a useful tool,

         24  a helpful tool as we go forward in the City.

         25                 And then again, to hear that
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          2  basically the administration may just be putting

          3  this out for the sake of putting it out, is

          4  unfortunate, and hopefully we can change that.

          5                 When you mention issues such as

          6  confidentiality, I understand that.  Obviously,

          7  that's something that we're going to have to discuss

          8  subsequent to this hearing, but I do look forward to

          9  continuing the dialog and sitting down with

         10  administration and working out the issues that not

         11  only you may have with Intro 507, but that we may

         12  have with the use of this report.

         13                 I know Council Member Gennaro

         14  probably does have some questions, I'm just going to

         15  ask a general quick question, a couple of them,

         16  really quick.  Burdensome, you used a couple of

         17  words, burdensome, a lot of information that this

         18  report here may triple, quadruple in size four or

         19  five times.  Is it possible that some of the

         20  information that we're asking for in Intro 507 can

         21  be available on line?  So that somebody who wants to

         22  have access to it, to do some investigative work or

         23  research, that information could be on line so it's

         24  not in volume, but is basically accessibility.

         25                 MR. SWEENEY:  This entire report is
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          2  on line right now.  It's on the Department of

          3  Records website.  Anybody can go and look at it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I understand

          5  that, and I appreciate that.  But again, if we were

          6  to adhere to Intro 507, and to your point that it

          7  would increase the amount of volume of this report,

          8  can we at least make the information that we're

          9  asking for in 507 just at least be available on

         10  line?

         11                 MR. SWEENEY:  That would have to be

         12  done item by item.  It might be possible with

         13  certain categories and it might not with other

         14  categories.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  See?

         16  This is good. We're getting there.

         17                 Another thing we may look at if you

         18  believe possible that Intro 507 would make this an

         19  even more cumbersome report, then maybe we could

         20  look to streamline the current report.  Again, I

         21  think this is a report that's going to be, at least

         22  in its first couple of additions, going to have to

         23  be revised in some way and going to have to be

         24  worked out.  And again, as long as we have the

         25  cooperation and the door is open on the
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          2  administration, there is a possibility and hope for

          3  this report.

          4                 MR. SWEENEY:  We'll be happy to be

          5  with any members of the Council or their staff to

          6  discuss any possible amendments or re- working of

          7  both the legislation and the actual report.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  I'm

          9  optimistic, so I thank you very much.

         10                 Council Member Gennaro.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman.

         13                 I've got a bit of a problem in that,

         14  not withstanding, what you just said about your

         15  willingness to meet, when we passed Local Law 41,

         16  and that was signed into law, the representatives of

         17  NYCOSH, Joel Shufro's here today.  I mean, we tried

         18  to make a meeting between representatives of NYCOSH,

         19  who's really working very closely with us on Local

         20  Law 41, to sit down with the Law Department during

         21  the rule making phase, after the bill was signed

         22  into law, to figure out if we could engage them

         23  during the rule making process to get a report that

         24  might serve our needs.  And not withstanding, our

         25  repeated efforts, it is my understanding that
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          2  meeting never happened.  And so that is not in the

          3  spirit of cooperation that we were looking for.

          4  When we endeavored to do this process, to do Local

          5  Law 41, the idea was that we wanted to work

          6  collaboratively with the administration, with the

          7  labor community, with the advocates for worker's

          8  safety and the Council, to figure out how we could

          9  do that.  And what happened as it has been explained

         10  to me, after Local Law 41 was signed into law, the

         11  door was shut and then we couldn't participate in

         12  the process, and so now we're coming forward with

         13  what we believe are reasonable modifications, and

         14  all we get is more negativity.

         15                 First of all, why don't you just

         16  respond to why couldn't we get a meeting after the

         17  signing of Local Law 41 to have you guys sit down

         18  with NYCOSH so that we could all work together in

         19  the spirit of trying to reduce worker injuries,

         20  increase worker safety and save money in Worker

         21  Compensation payouts?  Why didn't that happen?

         22                 MR. SWEENEY:  I believe we met with

         23  the Council and members of the Council and their

         24  staff and worked out the bill and beyond that --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  We worked
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          2  out the bill, we worked out the bill but after,

          3  again, I've been in government 24 years and the

          4  legislature here as a staff member and a member for

          5  17 years, and a lot happens after the bill is signed

          6  into law.  And a lot of effort happens up to that

          7  point, but the rule making and how the reports can

          8  be configured and it's utility, what people want to

          9  use it for, is a critical phase, as well.  One

         10  that's ultimately controlled by the administration,

         11  and that was the view that the administration took.

         12  It was their job to write rules and they didn't want

         13  too many cooks standing around the pot.  And so, as

         14  a result, we have a report that by your admission,

         15  doesn't really get used very much by you guys, and

         16  it's not being used by people who want it, so what

         17  did we do all this for?

         18                 And so, going forward, we want to

         19  figure out a way ultimately, to get the labor

         20  community and the Council and the administration and

         21  the advocates working together in what should be our

         22  common quest.  And we haven't been able to make that

         23  happen. And so, I would like you to respond to that.

         24    You know, here we are, May 31st, 2007 --

         25                 MR SWEENEY:  I think you described it
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          2  well.  The legislation required the administration

          3  to essentially prepare the report.  And there was

          4  nothing in the legislation that indicated that other

          5  entities were going to have input.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Again, there

          7  is, this sounds silly, but we wanted all aspects of

          8  this process to be informed by people who have a

          9  real stake and are involved in the issues.  Just

         10  like when we make legislation.  I mean, we could do

         11  a bill without talking to people, but we like to

         12  talk to people. And that's just the way we do it.

         13  And the administration had the prerogative after

         14  signing of Local Law 41, after Local Law 41 was

         15  signed into law, to have a collaborative process or

         16  to shut people out.  And so, you shut people out and

         17  we've got a report that you don't use, they don't

         18  use, we don't use.  So, what did we do all this for?

         19    And so, that's my problem.  No answer.

         20                 MR. SWEENEY:  I have no further

         21  response to that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  No further

         23  response. Terrific.

         24                 Now, with regard to, I'll sort of

         25  separate out your testimony in terms of the new
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          2  items, there are, what Intro 507 is about is again,

          3  as you point out in your testimony, the things you

          4  ridiculed, are some of the new things that we would

          5  like to add. But another part of 507 are the things

          6  that are already being collected.  Forget about the

          7  new things that we ask for, which you spent a lot of

          8  time on in your testimony ridiculing.  But the other

          9  things that are already being collected, there is a

         10  desire to have those things that are already

         11  collected that are handed over to the Mayors office,

         12  just to have those items reported.  Now, that

         13  wouldn't create any more work for anybody.  And so,

         14  one obvious question, and I'm sure we're going to

         15  have a lot of testimony to this from the people who

         16  will step forward after you is, why can't we have

         17  that information in some form to put that

         18  information to use?

         19                 MR. SWEENEY:  I'm not sure precisely

         20  what information you're referring to, but I can tell

         21  you that complying with 507 would create an enormous

         22  additional burden --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Again, don't

         24  mince things here because what we, Local Law 41,

         25  what you have here, they're under paragraph one of
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          2  that law, these are the things that are collected

          3  now.  The name of the agency, the employee title,

          4  all the things which are all collected now and are

          5  turned over to the Mayors office.  So that would be,

          6  I don't have my glasses on, but it's paragraph one,

          7  sub division C.  That is already being reported and

          8  turned over to the Mayors office.  That's in

          9  paragraph one, subdivision C, which is turned over

         10  to the Mayors office, we're asking that to be

         11  included in the report and not just given to the

         12  Mayors office for the purposes of having it

         13  summarized.

         14                 MR. SWEENEY:  It actually doesn't

         15  work that way. It's not actually turned over.  All

         16  that information does exist in either Workers

         17  Compensation Division files or agency files.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right.

         19                 MR. SWEENEY:  In order to put that

         20  into a report, would require both electronic data

         21  downloading, which is not the big problem, but

         22  physically opening up a paper file.  We get about

         23  16,000 claims per year.  Somebody would have to open

         24  up each one of them and make notes as to what's in

         25  there.  If we spend an hour on each file to do that,
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          2  it would take, that would be 16,000 hours or 2300

          3  work days.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I don't

          5  understand how you're complying now if you're not

          6  compiling this information.  So, how is the Mayors

          7  office able to produce a report if they don't have

          8  access to this information?

          9                 MR. SWEENEY:  The Mayors office has

         10  delegated the collecting of that to the various

         11  agencies.  Some of it resides with the Law

         12  Department and some of it resides with the

         13  individual agency.  And that's what winds up in this

         14  report, adding a bunch of additional --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I don't

         16  understand how that happens, so could you just go

         17  over that again?  I'm missing it. Because what

         18  you're telling me is that the compilation of this

         19  information is not possible, but yet you have to

         20  summarize it and report on it.  So, it's not

         21  compiled --

         22                 MR. SWEENEY:  It's possible, it's

         23  just extremely burdensome.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  So, you

         25  don't compile this information?
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          2                 MR. SWEENEY:  We don't collect it in

          3  one place and bring it to another place.  It exists

          4  in individual files.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  So, what is

          6  the report then?  So, what is --

          7                 MR. SWEENEY:  The current report?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  The current

          9  report, so what informs this report?

         10                 MR. SWEENEY:  The current report

         11  lists the various categories of information that the

         12  statute has required up till now.  This would add a

         13  bunch of other categories which would need to be --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  No, forget

         15  about, forget the new categories.  I'm going to

         16  separate that out because one of the things that 507

         17  does, it asks for new things.

         18                 MR. SWEENEY:  Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Which you

         20  made a parade of ridiculing.  We get it.  We

         21  understand you hate that.  Okay.  And so we'll talk

         22  to people and we'll get more information about that.

         23  I'm talking about what is supposed to form the basis

         24  of the report right now that the things in paragraph

         25  one of subdivision C, which are not new things,
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          2  which are already in the mix.  And what I'm failing

          3  to grasp is how these items are, you cannot be

          4  brought forward and reported.  But yet, somehow, in

          5  order for you to produce that report, you have to

          6  take that information, all these various items in

          7  paragraph one, subdivision C.  I don't see how you

          8  don't compile that if you have to do that report.

          9                 MR SWEENEY:  It's not --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I'm not, I

         11  don't mean to be like that, but it's misleading.

         12                 MR. SWEENEY:  That information exists

         13  in thousand and thousands of individual files.  We

         14  extract the information from those files that's

         15  required by Local Law 41 and that goes into the

         16  report now.

         17                 To extract additional information --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  No, no,

         19  again, you keep going there.  I know that you don't

         20  like the new things that 507 calls for.  We know you

         21  hate that.  We know you ridiculed it already.  We

         22  got it.  Forget the new stuff, please.  I'm talking

         23  about just the things that currently exist right now

         24  in paragraph one, subdivision C.  Those items, we

         25  want those reported.
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          2                 MR. SWEENEY:  They would have to be

          3  transcribed into the report.  It's a major

          4  undertaking.  We get 16,000 claims per year,  Is it

          5  doable?  Yes, it's doable.  But will require a lot

          6  more staff and effort.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Mr,

          8  Chairman, I think we're just going to go around and

          9  around here.  I'm failing to see the witness' point

         10  here.  We'll get, perhaps, some other perspectives

         11  on this from some of the other witnesses.  But I

         12  think to belabor this point would just be a waste of

         13  people's time.

         14                 Let me just see if I have any further

         15  questions. I'm finished, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRMAN ADDABBO:  I would think for

         17  now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  What's that?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I would think

         20  for now, you're finished.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  For now.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right.

         23                 I'd like to welcome Council Member

         24  Melissa Mark- Viverito a member of this Committee,

         25  for being here.  Thank you, Council member.
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          2                 Mr. Sweeney, just a couple of, my

          3  concern is also the use of the report even as it

          4  exists now.  Before, like Council Member Gennaro

          5  said, putting 507 aside for a second, you mentioned

          6  that you put the report out, but it seems to be a

          7  dead end at that point.  Again, we'll start from the

          8  common ground.  We all want obviously, to make the

          9  work place safer for people.  We all want obviously,

         10  to save the City money when we can, in terms of the

         11  Workers Compensation claims.  I mean, this is all

         12  common ground, correct?

         13                 MR. SWEENEY:  Sure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  I just

         15  want to start from a starting point which is where

         16  we hope to go forward with, with the use of this

         17  report.

         18                 There was an Executive order, I

         19  understand, Executive Order 38 that created through

         20  DCAS City- wide Safety and Health Committee.  To

         21  your knowledge, any recollection of Executive Order

         22  38 and this sub committee of DCAS?

         23                 MR. SWEENEY:  I'm aware that the

         24  Committee exists, although I haven't had any

         25  personal involvement with it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  To your

          3  understanding, you have an idea of what the purpose

          4  of this Committee was?

          5                 MR. SWEENEY:  As I understand it,

          6  it's to examine work place safety issues, but I

          7  don't have any, I've not been to any of their

          8  meetings or anything like that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Do we know if

         10  they do have hearings or meetings?

         11                 MR. SWEENEY:  I don't have any

         12  personal knowledge, I assume they do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Because it

         14  would just seem logical that this Citywide Safety

         15  and Health Committee under DCAS would be the

         16  appropriate Committee that could analyze this

         17  report, and hopefully use it as a tool.

         18                 MR. SWEENEY:  That would be a good

         19  idea.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  In our

         21  subsequent meetings after this hearing, we may look

         22  into that and actually invite them to the table to

         23  see if maybe they are the ones to analyze the

         24  numbers here.  DCAS does a fine job in analyzing

         25  certain numbers for the City.  Maybe we can use this
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          2  Committee, if it's a viable Committee, that they can

          3  use this to help the City, use this report.  So, I

          4  look forward to looking into that issue, as well.

          5                 The Executive Summary, we understand

          6  there wasn't one in the first report, we have one in

          7  the second report.  Again, it's a pleasure to see it

          8  there, we appreciate it.  The reason I wanted it in

          9  codified form in Intro 507 is because currently this

         10  Council, and the Mayors office, is working well

         11  together.  Future administration and future Council

         12  members may not work well together, so we want to

         13  make sure that the Executive Summary is required.

         14                 MR. SWEENEY:  We have no objection to

         15  that provision of the legislation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  See, that's one

         17  thing.  Okay. And we appreciate that.

         18                 Who actually gets the report?

         19                 MR. SWEENEY:  The report gets

         20  delivered to four people.  The Speaker of the

         21  Council, the Mayor, the Public Advocate and the

         22  Comptroller.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Is the report

         24  in any way accessible by the general public?

         25                 MR. SWEENEY:  Yes.  It's within a
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          2  couple of days of delivery to the City officials, it

          3  was posted on the website for the Department of

          4  Records.  If you go to their website and look under

          5  Labor Relations, you'll find, it's one of the first

          6  items there.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  We appreciate

          8  that.

          9                 At this point, let me just welcome

         10  another member of the Committee.  I know you were

         11  downstairs with the budget, Council Member Larry

         12  Seabrook.  Thank you so much for being here, Council

         13  Member Seabrook, and again, for your time.

         14                 And again, we appreciate the

         15  accessibility of this report that others may look to

         16  possibly use it if their members may refer to a

         17  certain agency.  We appreciate the accessibility of

         18  the information in this report.

         19                 I believe we have follow up questions

         20  from Council Member Gennaro.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman. I did come up with another question.

         23                 Again, not to belabor it, but I was

         24  talking previously about paragraph one subdivision C

         25  which goes over as you know, all of the various
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          2  categories that are supposed to be compiled.  Now

          3  right after that, paragraph two of Local Law 41,

          4  indicates that each agency, I'm reading from the

          5  law, each agency shall transmit records gathered

          6  pursuant to paragraph one, subdivision C of this

          7  section, as soon as practicable to the Mayor of the

          8  City of New York.  Then paragraph three talks about

          9  the creation of the report.

         10                 So, my issue continues to be that one

         11  of two things is going on.  The law calls for this

         12  in paragraph one to be compiled, and then paragraph

         13  two, to be transferred to the Mayors office.  Now,

         14  if that is happening now, then I contend that if

         15  it's being gathered and transmitted to the Mayors

         16  office, then it would be an easy thing to report.

         17  Now, that is one scenario.

         18                 Another scenario is that this is not

         19  indeed happening.  And if this is not happening, the

         20  administration would technically be in compliance

         21  with Local Law 41.  So, which is it, sir?

         22                 MR. SWEENEY:  All that information is

         23  being collected by the Law Department as a designee

         24  of the Mayor.  All that information will exist in

         25  the files of the Law Department. Some of it will
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          2  exist in electronic form, and some of it will exist

          3  in paper form.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  So, if

          5  indeed, it is being compiled by the various agencies

          6  and pursuant to paragraph two, is that each agency

          7  shall transmit records gathered pursuant to

          8  paragraph -- as soon as possible to the Mayor to the

          9  City of New York and what you're saying is that the

         10  Law Department is acting as the Mayor --

         11                 MR. SWEENEY: Is collecting them,

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  -- For the

         13  purposes of satisfying paragraph two.  So, if this

         14  is happening, and you're actually receiving this,

         15  and you're using this to summarize or whatever, and

         16  be put into the report, we're saying that you're

         17  getting it, you could just report it in its raw

         18  form, if you will, and make that available.  And so,

         19  your job is to sort of convince me that that's a big

         20  problem.

         21                 MR. SWEENEY:  If you'd like to go

         22  item by item, I could tell you what the various

         23  issues are.

         24                 The name of the agency where the

         25  employee worked, that's already in the report.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right.

          3                 MR. SWEENEY:  Okay?

          4                 Such employees title, that's not in

          5  the current report and for the reason set forth in

          6  my testimony, we think there are some problems with

          7  confidentiality by including that.

          8                 Number three, the date such employee

          9  filed the claim with the appropriate office of the

         10  State of New York.  That information is not in

         11  electronic form.  That would reside in our files,

         12  but it would be in paper form requiring a person to

         13  go retrieve that.

         14                 Number four, the date the City began

         15  to --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  But, but,

         17  but don't you need that for the purposes of

         18  generating the report?

         19                 MR. SWEENEY:  You don't need all of

         20  it because if you look at the items that are

         21  actually published in the report, there's two things

         22  going on in this law.  You're collecting a lot of

         23  data and then you're publishing other data.  They

         24  don't overlap, you're not publishing everything you

         25  collect.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay.  Keep

          3  going.

          4                 MR. SWEENEY:  Number four --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  But you do

          6  have to analyze it.  And if you're analyzing it, I

          7  don't know why it couldn't --

          8                 MR. SWEENEY:  Okay, you're analyzing

          9  the data that's in the report.  Not all of this is

         10  in the report right now.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  That's our

         12  point.  We would like it to be in the report.

         13                 MR. SWEENEY:  I'm explaining what the

         14  various ramifications of that are.

         15                 The date the injury occurred.  That's

         16  already in the report.  The nature of the injury,

         17  there's a brief description of the nature of the

         18  injury.  The new law suggests a much more detailed

         19  description.  Again, that's something that

         20  information does exist, it's in our files, it will

         21  require staff to go through 16,000 or so paper files

         22  to extract that.  And a list of any expenses paid,

         23  we do aggregate, we list the expenses in the

         24  aggregate.  We don't list expenses by individual

         25  claim.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  And the

          3  length of time such employee is unable to work due

          4  to such injury.

          5                 MR. SWEENEY:  That's another item

          6  that would require someone to extract from a paper

          7  file, which is not currently part of the report.

          8  It's not currently being published.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Here is what

         10  I think has to happen, Mr. Chairman.  I think

         11  ultimately we're going to be able to forge some

         12  cooperative way to sort of move forward on this

         13  entire issue where we can ultimately get

         14  representatives of the Council or Council staff,

         15  people from the administration, people from labor,

         16  people from the advocate community to sit down and

         17  in the spirit of cooperation, figure out how we can

         18  conceive of what shouldn't be an impossible feat, to

         19  try to get a report that we're all committed to that

         20  we can all use appropriately.

         21                 And until that day happens, Mr.

         22  Chairman, then people are just going to be talking

         23  past each other.  And so, I stand by my original

         24  statement that I believe that having more

         25  information reported will be helpful.  But the way

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  this ultimately happens is figuring out a way we can

          3  get NYCOSH and labor people at the table to work

          4  cooperatively with the administration, to put out a

          5  report that we can now, you know, will you commit to

          6  that?

          7                 MR. SWEENEY:  We'll be happy to work

          8  with the Council and the Committee to do whatever --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  No, not just

         10  the Committee and the Council.  Because we're not, I

         11  mean, I'm a Council member, I'm not sort of the like

         12  pen ultimate labor expert.  I'm not a member of

         13  NYCOSH.  I'm not a shop steward.  I'm not someone

         14  who's responsible for people working.  I think that

         15  these are their workers and they certainly have a

         16  view which is meaningful here. And so, once again, I

         17  ask you, can we have a collaborative process where

         18  stakeholders who have an interest in this report to

         19  be brought to the table, we can figure out some way

         20  to move forward?  Yes or no?

         21                 MR. SWEENEY: That's a decision that's

         22  not mine.  But I will present that to the Mayors

         23  office and the Office of Labor Relations, and we'll

         24  get back to you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay.  Thank
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          2  you, sir. Thank you, madam.  Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

          5  Councilman Gennaro.

          6                 And I am going to be optimistic that

          7  we will meet the appropriate people at the table.

          8  We will meet and go forward on this report.

          9                 Lastly, Mr. Sweeney, two hearings

         10  prior to this, May 2004 and December 2006, we had

         11  spoken about the report and at that time if it had

         12  ever become a reality, we were talking about who

         13  would be the person to analyze it on behalf of the

         14  administration?

         15                 So, to rap up this part of the

         16  questioning, as far as what do we do with this

         17  report after it's done, we spoke about this

         18  Committee with DCAS, which we will go into further

         19  again at a subsequent meeting, after this hearing.

         20  But there was also a title that had been brought up

         21  called Risk Manager.  A Risk Manager possibly

         22  looking at again, your opinion about that title.

         23  Because I know it's come up.

         24                 MR. SWEENEY:  Yes, I'm not sure I

         25  have an official opinion about whether or not there
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          2  should be a Risk Manager.  I will leave that up to

          3  the Mayors office.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  I'm just

          5  going to again, give you a little heads up so to

          6  speak, this will come up subsequent to this hearing,

          7  the idea of every Risk Manager.  So hopefully when

          8  we do this meeting, we will have an answer to that

          9  question.  I appreciate it.

         10                 MR. SWEENEY:  Sure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you so

         12  much for your time and I appreciate your time and

         13  testimony today.

         14                 Any other questions?

         15                 Thank you so much.   We appreciate

         16  your time.

         17                 The next panel is Sterling Roberson

         18  and Chris Proctor, representing UFT.

         19                 I want to thank you very much for

         20  being here today. Just please state your name for

         21  the record and give your testimony please.

         22                 MS. PROCTOR:  Chris Proctor, UFT

         23  Safety and Health Department,

         24                 MR. ROBERSON:  Sterling Roberson,

         25  Director of School Safety, United Federation of
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          2  Teachers.

          3                 First of all, good morning, excuse

          4  me, good afternoon at this point.  And once again,

          5  my name is Sterling Roberson, Director of School

          6  Safety at the United Federation of Teachers and I am

          7  testifying on behalf of Randi Weingarten, President

          8  of the United Federation of Teachers, which

          9  represents approximately 100,000 employees in the

         10  New York City public schools.

         11                 I want to first, once again, thanks

         12  for the opportunity to testify today on the issue of

         13  work place injury and illnesses and their impact on

         14  UFT members.  Approximately 20,000 of our members,

         15  including paraprofessionals, occupational

         16  therapists, nurses, physical therapists, are covered

         17  under Workers Compensation.

         18                 The UFT strongly supports the New

         19  York City Council's Intro number 507 bill to amend

         20  Local Law 41 of 2004, the Workplace Safety and

         21  Protection Act.  Local Law 41 requires that all City

         22  agencies, regularly and uniformly as indicated

         23  today, record and report information regarding

         24  workplace injuries and illnesses.  An important

         25  feature of this law is the public disclosure of
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          2  statistical data of employee injuries and illnesses.

          3  However, this data is not presented in a meaningful

          4  way so that trends and patterns can be identified,

          5  and thus is essentially useless, as we basically saw

          6  previously.

          7                 Every day we see the human toll

          8  workplace injuries and illnesses that take our

          9  members and the real tragedies such injuries and

         10  illnesses are for the most part, preventable.  Over

         11  the years, the union has noticed a pattern of rising

         12  accident, assaults, injuries to internal union

         13  reports and anecdotal evidence.  Yet, this pattern

         14  is not reflected in the uniform reporting of the New

         15  York City Department of Education.

         16                 For example, in September 1, 2006 to

         17  date, 456 of our paraprofessionals have contacted

         18  the union to report being injured on the job.  This

         19  information is not summarized anywhere else.  Sadly,

         20  we know that there are many more of our members who

         21  are injured but are not reporting, for a number of

         22  reasons.  This includes a complicated and

         23  bureaucratic reporting process, discouragement and

         24  in some places, intimidation by the employer, and

         25  the lack of knowledge on how to go about reporting.
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          2                 We need this bill because existing

          3  laws and regulations have failed to convince our

          4  employer, the New York City Department of Education,

          5  to take all of the steps needed to make schools

          6  safe, to put in some programs that prevent injuries.

          7                 Intro number 507 requires reporting

          8  on a total monetary cost of injury and illness

          9  Workers Compensation claims, and a list of specific

         10  sites where injuries and illnesses are occurring, as

         11  well as a year to year comparison of this

         12  information.  We need to target high risk

         13  environments and work tasks throughout our schools

         14  City- wide and then implement effective preventive

         15  strategies.  Intro number 507 will help make that

         16  possible.

         17                 Now, I'm going to turn it over to

         18  Chris who will talk about some of these high risk in

         19  the examples.

         20                 MS. PROCTOR:  Yes, and thank you

         21  again for the opportunity to testify and we have

         22  spoken before about the working conditions that our

         23  members face and in particular, I want to speak

         24  about paraprofessionals.  They assist special needs

         25  students, as well as a number of other students and
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          2  are doing a lot of almost health care nursing care

          3  type of activities.  They assist with feeding,

          4  diapering, toileting and some of the students may be

          5  up to 21 years of age.  And they have to lift and

          6  transfer them to a surface, often not even a table

          7  is provided.  We hear stories about just in the last

          8  month, there have been four schools in the Bronx

          9  where paras are changing kids on the floor.  These

         10  are regular schools where students are main-

         11  streamed in.  There's no dignity, no privacy, let

         12  alone the health and safety needs.  So they're at

         13  risk for injury and so is the student.

         14                 We also have paras who are assaulted

         15  and attacked. Often they're first in line because

         16  they are closest to the student.  When we do surveys

         17  of paras in our training classes, and ask how many

         18  of you have been injured, over half will raise their

         19  hands that they've been attacked or assaulted.  And

         20  over a third will report some type of

         21  musculoskeletal injury.

         22                 And our testimony includes a specific

         23  case, that could be applied in almost any school

         24  where suddenly a classroom para is assigned to a

         25  special needs student who needs to be, say for
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          2  example, diapered or toiletted, is given no

          3  training.  There are no workplace equipment and

          4  procedures in place to help the para.  It's just,

          5  you figure out how to diaper the child.  And in this

          6  case, we had a 250 pound student fall on a para and

          7  permanently injured her.  She had to drop out of

          8  college and may never have children.  The sad thing

          9  about this story is, it's not isolated to one

         10  school.  We hear it over and over.  We're still

         11  waiting for the Board of Ed. To produce a diapering

         12  policy.  I mean, it's outrageous.

         13                 And so, we want to target those

         14  schools.  And if we could have information that

         15  says, for example, in Queens and district so and so,

         16  we know that 100 paras have been injured, diapering

         17  and changing, then we could target that money.

         18  Let's get changing tables.  Let's get equipment,

         19  let's get lifting equipment.            So, that is

         20  why we're here today.  And we urge you to adopt this

         21  bill.  Work shouldn't hurt.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Well, first let

         23  me thank you very, very much for your time and

         24  testimony and let me also thank the members that you

         25  represent today, for their work and dedication in
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          2  the City.  So, thank you very much.

          3                 I'm just going to ask you a couple of

          4  questions and again, of course, if Council Member

          5  Gennaro has questions.  But, these are questions

          6  that I may repeat to future panels because I want to

          7  get as much information from the workforce, as

          8  possible.

          9                 So, obviously, you had mentioned it,

         10  Mr. Roberson, that this is not a useful report as it

         11  exists right now, correct?

         12                 MR. ROBERSON:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  Were you

         14  aware that you had access, now this is our second

         15  report, it's our second annual report, were you

         16  aware that you had access to the information of the

         17  reports as they are, again, on line?  Were you aware

         18  that you could have gained access to the information

         19  in the reports?

         20                 MS. PROCTOR:  We were not aware.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:   Okay.

         22  Internally, UFT, you keep track of injuries?

         23  Briefly, again, explain a little briefly or maybe in

         24  a little bit more detail, how do you keep track of

         25  the injuries amongst your members?
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          2                 MS. PROCTOR:  What we did actually,

          3  through our training when we would poll members and

          4  ask how many were injured on the job, we realized

          5  these were very high numbers, when over half were

          6  reported being assaulted or otherwise attacked.  And

          7  over a third have muscular- skeletal injuries.  So,

          8  we asked how many of you are filing Workers

          9  Compensation claims.  Guess what happened? Less than

         10  one percent of the people raising their hands said

         11  we don't file, for many reasons.  It's complicate,

         12  it's easier to use our insurance, et cetera, et

         13  cetera.

         14                 So, we set up, in the union, a

         15  Workers Compensation assistance program and we

         16  publicize it as much as possible.  We have a poster

         17  in every school.  If you are injured on the job,

         18  call us, we will walk you through the entire

         19  process.  But that's only people calling us.  And we

         20  try to publicize it as much as possible. For

         21  example, we have 456 paras in our data base just

         22  from this year.  We also urge all our members, as

         23  you know we have a number of members who are not

         24  covered by worker's comp, but we urge them to report

         25  injuries, assaults, et cetera, on the job and we
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          2  have over 8,000 calls to date, just from September.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You had

          4  mentioned in the second paragraph of your testimony,

          5  the date is not presented in a meaningful way.  What

          6  suggestions, and again, I'd like to hear the input

          7  here, if we have the opportunity to sit down with

          8  the administration and go through the report and

          9  Intro 507, what suggestions would you like to make,

         10  as far as amending the report or what we are asking

         11  for?

         12                 MS. PROCTOR:  Well, I think to have

         13  it presented by agency, so that we can see, okay,

         14  yes, we had this many DOE paras injured, instead of

         15  going through the report and trying to pull out that

         16  information.  It was too time consuming for us.  And

         17  to have the information, but not be able to access

         18  it in that way and to know that yes, we have this

         19  many people being injured in these work sites doing

         20  these tasks.  Then you can target your resources.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

         22                 MS. PROCTOR:  We know where people

         23  are getting injured, anecdotally.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, Ms.

         25  Proctor.  The report is broken down by agency, but
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          2  again, we can possibly work with the report and

          3  maybe further detail is, especially what Intro 507

          4  is asking for, which is more detail.  So, maybe that

          5  would help, as well.

          6                 Council Member Gennaro?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman.

          9                 Yes, Chris, thank you for making the

         10  point that what we really want to do is get

         11  information to people that can use it to target

         12  resources to make decisions to make rational

         13  assessments as to what has to be done to make a

         14  safer work place.  This is really what we're looking

         15  for.

         16                 And with regard to the elements of

         17  that paragraph one, subdivision C that has all those

         18  various items that we went through, it's your

         19  belief, I mean, I don't want to, but it seems that

         20  what you're testifying to, that if this information

         21  were made more readily available, that would help

         22  you use the report.  And you'd be able to accomplish

         23  good things, right?  Would that be fair to say?

         24                 MS. PROCTOR:  Right.  I'll give you

         25  an example. Right now, especially in the mainstream
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          2  schools, we're seeing a lot more special needs

          3  students going into those schools.  The schools are

          4  receiving no guidance on how to provide for them.

          5  And so unless a principal or administrator along

          6  with the chapter leader, take it upon themselves to

          7  figure out we need a changing table, this is where

          8  we have to go to get one.  And we get involved as

          9  mush as possible, but with 1400 schools, you can see

         10  the task before us, and we to try to publicize as

         11  much as possible what to do without the Board of Ed

         12  having even a diapering policy.

         13                 But it would be really great if we

         14  could say, you know what, this many people were

         15  injured changing students.  Let's take that money

         16  and prevent it from happening and buy these many

         17  adjustable changing tables.  And nobody has that

         18  information City wide in the school system.  It's

         19  school by school.  And that's what

         20  is so frustrating.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Well,

         22  certainly it's our hope that we ultimately will be

         23  able to provide that to you.  We have a lot of, as

         24  you saw, resistance from the Law Department and the

         25  administration.  But ultimately, it's certainly our
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          2  intent to give you the information you need so that

          3  you can make decisions about your members.

          4                 MS. PROCTOR:  And we really thank you

          5  for your efforts in making our schools healthier and

          6  safer.  We really appreciate it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you.

          8  And thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         10  Council Member Gennaro.  Thank you very much Ms.

         11  Proctor and Mr. Roberson.  Thank you very much for

         12  your time.

         13                 Next panel will be President James

         14  Huntley from the Traffic and Sanitation Enforcement

         15  Agents.

         16                 Thank you very much for being here

         17  and for your time and testimony today.  It's

         18  certainly good to see you again.

         19                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Oh, it's always good to

         20  see you, Mr. Addabbo.

         21                 Thank you so much for having this

         22  Council meeting on workman safety and injuries.

         23                 Good morning, I mean, I'm sorry

         24  again, good afternoon.  My name is James Huntley.  I

         25  am proud to be here today on behalf of more than
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          2  2,000 or more active and retired traffic and

          3  sanitation enforcement agents, who are probably part

          4  of the uniform forces of the City of New York, and

          5  equally proud to belong to Local 1182 of the

          6  Communications Workers of America.

          7                 I would like to begin today by

          8  thanking Speaker Quinn and Chairman Addabbo for

          9  holding today's hearings and giving me the

         10  opportunity to testify on behalf of my members.  I

         11  would like to express our appreciation to Councilman

         12  Gennaro and other sponsors of Intro 507 for their

         13  support for the City workers.

         14                 The members of Local 1182 are hard

         15  working New York City residents who have devoted

         16  their lives to enforcing the law and preserving the

         17  quality of life for millions of New York City

         18  residents and commuters.  The law enforcement and

         19  public safety professionals of New York City,

         20  whether they are police officers, fire fighters,

         21  paramedics, correction officers, traffic enforcement

         22  agents or sanitation enforcement agents, provide

         23  vital service that benefits the entire region.  For

         24  example, the members of Local 1182 ensure that

         25  traffic can smoothly flow through the streets and
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          2  those who illegally dump are caught and fined.  Our

          3  members enforce traffic, pedestrian safety and

          4  environmental laws and we carry our important public

          5  safety functions in response to emergencies.

          6                 Unfortunately, each and every day,

          7  traffic and sanitation agents are also subject to

          8  violence when carrying out their duties.  There are

          9  many instances when our members are attacked simply

         10  because they are doing their job and enforcing the

         11  law.  In the first four months of this year alone,

         12  there were 121 separate crimes committed against

         13  traffic enforcement agents during the course of

         14  their official duties.  In 2006, our members were

         15  victimized 344 times.  Let me repeat these numbers.

         16  In a 16 month period, beginning in January 2006, New

         17  York City law enforcement professionals belonging to

         18  my union, were victimized on 465 separate occasions,

         19  simply for doing their jobs.

         20                 But deliberate violence is only part

         21  of the story. I could share with you countless

         22  examples of hard working dedicated public servants

         23  tragically injured in a line of duty and senseless

         24  accidents.  In the past few years alone, we have had

         25  members lose their limbs or wind up in comas after
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          2  being hit by vehicles while on the job.

          3  Unfortunately, I cannot tell you how many of my

          4  members have been injured in the line of duty, which

          5  is why we strongly support Intro 507.

          6                 In conclusion, only by better

          7  tracking work place injuries can the City

          8  effectively plan and protect its workforce. Intro

          9  507 will make this possible.  And my union urges its

         10  swift enactment.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Huntley,

         12  thank you very much for being here.

         13                 Anybody else have a statement?

         14                 MR. HUNTLEY:  I'm sorry.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I was asking if

         16  this panel or anyone else has a statement.  I'm sure

         17  these are your members who are out there every day.

         18                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Yes, they'd wish to

         19  make a somewhat comment to this proceeding here.  I

         20  brought some of my members here because of the

         21  flight of this 507.  We have members here that was

         22  (sic.) Assaulted by doing their duties here and

         23  they'd like to express a little word or two to you

         24  and your staff, in regards to that injury while on

         25  their duties, if that's okay with you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, a brief

          3  statement? Sure.

          4                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Yes.  No, we don't have

          5  any written statement.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  Well,

          7  again, let me first thank the members.  Again, you

          8  represent many, so let me thank you for your

          9  dedication and commitment to the City and the fine

         10  work that you do day in and day out.  And it is the

         11  intent of this report to make your workplace a safer

         12  place and obviously, look to reduce the number of

         13  injuries in the long run, that you may experience.

         14  So again, we appreciate your work, but we're hopeful

         15  that we can work together in making this report a

         16  better report.

         17                 I'm going to ask President Huntley a

         18  couple of questions, similar to the previous panel.

         19  The current report, again, I'm guessing you feel

         20  that there could be improvements to the current

         21  report, correct Mr. Huntley?

         22                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Yes, I concur with

         23  that, yes sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And were you

         25  aware that previously you had access to the
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          2  information in the report?

          3                 MR. HUNTLEY:  No, sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

          5  Internally, do you keep track of injuries amongst

          6  your members?

          7                 MR. HUNTLEY: Yes, through our

          8  workman's comp liaison, Miss Amy Poitier (phonetic)

          9  and also through your harms report which we have to

         10  request from the City of New York to give to us to

         11  get the report.  It's not given to us, we have to

         12  request it in order for us to have that harms report

         13  to show the injuries, the assault, the OJA, the

         14  assault and the type of injury that's sustained on

         15  the job.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  No, of the

         17  2,000 active members, correct, that you have?

         18                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Possibly about 2400

         19  now.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  Of the

         21  2400, the numbers that you had mentioned that were

         22  victimized or hurt on -- that's kind of high.

         23                 MR. HUNTLEY:  It is.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You know 344

         25  and 465, that's kind of high.
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          2                 So again, I look forward to working

          3  with you for the sake of your members in relation to

          4  your workplace injuries.

          5                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Yes, sir.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:   Okay?

          7                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Yes, sir.  And one more

          8  thing I'd like to add is that it seems to be when

          9  our agents are assaulted or injured on the job, they

         10  have to use their time, their annual leave time, in

         11  order to pay for the workmen's comp to start in

         12  effect within eight days of using their annual leave

         13  time and sick time. It's truly ridiculous.  They

         14  earned this time, and yet if they get injured or

         15  assaulted, they're victimized by using their time.

         16  That has to change.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You know, I

         18  tend to agree with you. Mr. Huntley.  There are

         19  other issues that need to be worked out as far as

         20  workplace injuries and obviously, workplace

         21  environment and that's obviously what this Labor

         22  Committee is interested in.  So, that's another

         23  issue, obviously, we can work on.

         24                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Yes, sir.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay?
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          2                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Thank you, sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Our pleasure,

          4  always.  Thank you again for your time here today

          5  and again your commitment to the City.

          6                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Our next panel

         11  is Joel Shufro from NYCOSH.

         12                 Just for the record, the testimony of

         13  Mr. Ed Ott, President of the Central Labor Council,

         14  will be handed into the Committee for the record.

         15                 Mr. Shufro, it's good to see you

         16  again.

         17                 MR. SHUFRO:  Good to be here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Please give

         19  your testimony.

         20                 MR. SHUFRO:  Thank you.

         21                 My name is Joel Shufro.  I'm the

         22  Executive Director of the New York Committee for

         23  Occupational Safety and Health.  And we are here

         24  testifying in favor of Local Law, of Intro 507,

         25  amending Local Law 41 of 2004.
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          2                 The current law requires that

          3  agencies collect and transmit information about

          4  Workers Compensation claims to the workers, to the

          5  Mayor's office, as the Council member is questioning

          6  of the, of Mr. Sweeney pointed out.  And the way the

          7  law was constructed, narrowly interpreted by the

          8  Department, was that they only need to use some of

          9  that information in preparing the report.

         10  Unfortunately, it is the strict construction of the

         11  law.  The law clearly gives them the ability to

         12  construct a report that is much broader than what

         13  they are doing.  So for example, Section C1, which

         14  we've referred to before, it lists nine pieces of

         15  information that the Department is required to

         16  collect, but the sentence that introduces that

         17  section says such records shall include, but is not

         18  limited to.  Similarly, in the third section of the

         19  law, which requires the Mayor to produce a report

         20  and outlines the four pieces of information that

         21  should be in that report, was required to be in the

         22  report, it also has a statement saying such report

         23  shall include, but is not limited to.

         24                 We went to Mr. Sweeney to say to him,

         25  can we sit down and talk to you about this?

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  Because, and he, this was two years ago shortly

          3  after the law was passed, and we asked him whether

          4  we could sit and discuss developing a report that

          5  would be useful for all parties?  He said to us that

          6  the law was cut and dry and there was no room for

          7  interpretation.  We pointed out these sections which

          8  gave him latitude to do a broader report.  He just

          9  systematically refused and repeatedly refused to

         10  meet with us.  We sent letters to his up the chain

         11  of command.  We never even got the courtesy of a

         12  response from the administration about a meeting.

         13  So, we have now resorted to filing for freedom of

         14  information under the law.

         15                 As Council Member Gennaro pointed

         16  out, it says each agency shall transmit records

         17  gathered pursuant to paragraph one of subsection C

         18  of the section, as soon as practical to the Mayor of

         19  the City of New York.  We started in May of 2000,

         20  May 25th of 2006, writing to the Mayor.  And I have

         21  a sheaf of documents under the law that we have

         22  requested.  Letters asking for this information

         23  under the law, appealing their decision not to

         24  provide that information.  We quickly, after the new

         25  report was issued, filed a new letter of, under the
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          2  Freedom of Information law, asking for exactly the

          3  same information.  They constantly send us the

          4  entire 450 pages of the report.  We say, that's not

          5  what we're asking for, we're asking for the material

          6  that is outlined in section three of Section C of

          7  Section one.

          8                 So, it is clear that they are, and I

          9  have to say, it is one thing for the administration

         10  to closely read this law and produce a report that

         11  is consistent with the law.  And they have done

         12  that.  Useless as it may be.  It is another thing

         13  for the administration to violate the Freedom of

         14  Information law which is very clear, that they have

         15  to provide information to us.  And we are very

         16  concerned that they have been absolutely silent.

         17  They have stonewalled us.  They have not complied

         18  with the provisions of the law and we are, as I have

         19  discussed with the Chairman, considering legal

         20  action on this issue.

         21                 We are at a loss as to why the City

         22  takes such a hard line stance on this.  The Mayor

         23  has over and over again asked the City unions for

         24  productivity gains.  We think that there is no

         25  better way of increasing productivity than reducing
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          2  the accident and injury rate of the employees of

          3  this City.  The report, which was posted on the web,

          4  showed that there were, I believe, about 10,000 City

          5  workers injured last year.  And the bulk of that

          6  cost of the $180 million, which the City spends on

          7  Workers Compensation, is for past injuries.  So,

          8  it's not only that you're reducing injuries for one

          9  year, you're reducing the cost into the future for

         10  many, many years.

         11                 Many cities in the country do have

         12  Risk Managers, many cities do look at their Workers

         13  Compensation experiences. Many major corporations in

         14  this country do this routinely as a way of reducing

         15  their Workers Compensation claims and many have been

         16  successful.  Just if you look at ergonomic injuries

         17  alone, the literature is pretty clear.  That for

         18  every dollar that is invested, the company receives

         19  about three dollars in return in a very short period

         20  of time.  If you go to nursing homes in western

         21  parts of New York where they've introduced zero lift

         22  programs, back injuries are eliminated.  They have

         23  reduced their Workers Compensation costs by hundreds

         24  of thousands of dollars in one year. So, this is not

         25  rocket science.  This is a very easy doable thing.
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          2  But you need the data to do it.  You have to figure

          3  out where it is that people are being injured.  You

          4  have to figure out what job titles they are.

          5  Because if you don't have that sort of information,

          6  you're firing a gunshot wildly and wasting your time

          7  and valuable resources.

          8                 So, we are a little befuddled why the

          9  administration is not willing to work with us on

         10  this, and we just end by saying that while we think

         11  it's a win, win situation for the City, what is

         12  really at stake, is that we can reduce the human

         13  suffering of the City workers, which pales, in terms

         14  of cost, it's much more important than the exact

         15  dollar amount that the City ends up paying.  Because

         16  it affects not even them, it affects their families,

         17  their children and so forth, and we think that is

         18  the motivation for doing this report right.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  As always, Mr.

         21  Shufro, thank you very much and thank you for your

         22  input as we lead up to this report.

         23                 Talking about input, We know you had

         24  input, obviously working with Council Member Gennaro

         25  and myself on the report, but with the
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          2  administration, do you feel that you could have had

          3  more input in not only formulating this report, but

          4  even thereafter?

          5                 MR. SHUFRO:  Yes, we absolutely felt

          6  that it would have been very useful for NYCOSH, its

          7  local union affiliates, the unions that were

          8  affected, to sit down and to look at what was really

          9  needed, what was authorized, and to come up with a

         10  report that worked for everyone, and I think we

         11  still could do that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I agree with

         13  you.  And as we go forward in our work with the

         14  administration on this report and in improving it,

         15  we'll see to it that in some way, you will have some

         16  input, as again, we welcome the input of others.

         17                 Do you agree with us that we have an

         18  opportunity here with this report and with the

         19  analysis of its numbers, to save some money in

         20  claims, to make the workplace environment a safer

         21  place to reduce number of injuries?  Do you see that

         22  opportunity? Do you truly believe that we do have

         23  that opportunity?

         24                 MR. SHUFRO:  I think that it is a

         25  very important opportunity and I think any company
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          2  of this size, that was running like the City is

          3  blind, would be a miss, in terms of any kind of

          4  business model that I know of.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Before I get to

          6  questioning from Council Member Gennaro, were you

          7  kind of surprised when you heard Mr. Sweeney turn

          8  around and say that really there's no follow up once

          9  they produce the report, that's basically it?

         10  There's no analysis of the report either by a

         11  committee within DCAS, or risk manager or anything

         12  of that type.  Were you kind of surprised at that?

         13                 MR. SHUFRO:  No.  I wasn't.  But I

         14  was disturbed that is the case.  And I actually sat

         15  here thinking about how is it that you two retain

         16  hair at the top of your head, frankly, when I'd lose

         17  mine over these issues?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  On that point,

         19  I'll turn it over to Council Member Gennaro.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chairman.

         22                 With regard to Risk Managers, we

         23  don't have one in the City of New York?  Pardon my

         24  ignorance on this.

         25                 MR. SHUFRO:  We had one through part
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          2  of the Giuliani administration and one of the

          3  administrative changes that he made in his infinite

          4  wisdom, was to eliminate it, that position.  So,

          5  there was an attempt in the past to try and look at

          6  the data and to try and figure out how to reduce

          7  accidents and injuries and develop a systematic

          8  plan.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Where was

         10  that housed, that position?

         11                 MR. SHUFRO:  I believe it was in

         12  DCAS, but I'm not-

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: DCAS.

         14                 MR. SHUFRO: I believe so.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  It was

         16  something that was in existence before the Giuliani

         17  administration, but was subsequently terminated

         18  during that administration.

         19                 MR. SHUFRO:  Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  But was it

         21  around for five years, ten years or --

         22                 MR. SHUFRO: I don't know the answer

         23  to that question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  But

         25  certainly if New York City, as you pointed out, were
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          2  a private company and a company with hundreds of

          3  thousands of employees, I don't even know how many

          4  employees we have, it's a lot, right?  Do you know

          5  how many employees we have in New York City?

          6                 MR. SHUFRO:  Well, I know that

          7  District Council 37 represents 120,000 workers,

          8  that's a starting point.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right.  So,

         10  it would be inconceivable that any private entity

         11  this big would not have dedicated some level of

         12  intensive resources towards how to manage risk, but

         13  right now we don't have any such thing.

         14                 MR. SHUFRO:  That's correct.  If

         15  you're spending $180 million a year on injuries past

         16  and present, you would want to get that cost under

         17  control.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right, but

         19  we did get a fair amount of complaints today about

         20  the paperwork that would be involved in producing a

         21  report that could be of some use.  And let me just

         22  jump to that right now.

         23                 When I look at Mr. Sweeney's

         24  testimony, I kind of split it into two parts, one is

         25  the whole back and forth we had about paragraph one,
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          2  subsection three, whatever it is, and so there's

          3  that part.  And then the other part of his testimony

          4  was about some of the new things that 507 would call

          5  from, some additional data items that we would like

          6  to gather, which he didn't respond well to.  Let's

          7  do the latter first.  Regarding the items that we

          8  would like to collect that are in 507, you heard his

          9  testimony on that, do you have any particular

         10  comment regarding his views on those new data items?

         11                 MR. SHUFRO:  We have sat with Workers

         12  Compensation attorneys and experts in the field to

         13  go over what this information, this is information

         14  which the Department has and which is, should be

         15  collected and analyzed.  And I do want to say, that

         16  we are not interested in any individual case.  We

         17  are talking here about aggregate data.  We need to

         18  know by job title and location, or job title and

         19  agency, where the injuries are taking place.  And

         20  that is what is central here.  And we have no

         21  interest whatsoever in, I do not see how his concern

         22  for confidentiality is of concern here.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  So, even

         24  after hearing his testimony, you stand by your

         25  assessment that what we're asking for in 507, in
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          2  terms of new data items, is appropriate.

          3                 MR. SHUFRO:  We're not going to say

          4  that there aren't any costs associated with this.

          5  There are.  But we think that in the long run, this

          6  was the way in which you organized to eliminate

          7  hazards on the job.  If you don't have the data, you

          8  are going to go on injuring worker after worker

          9  after worker.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         11  Thank you.  Now let me just jump to the other part

         12  of his testimony that was the back and forth that

         13  Mr. Sweeney and I had regarding what's being

         14  collected, what's sort of being collected, what's

         15  being transmitted, what's sort of being transmitted.

         16    You were listening to the back and forth.  I was

         17  having difficulty sort of figuring all of that out.

         18  It seems like what was being said is that, it is

         19  being collected, they do have it, but they can't

         20  report it because it would be too much work.  Again,

         21  we were going back and forth. I was having

         22  difficulty with that.  What is your sense of that

         23  exchange and help me make sense out of what he said,

         24  if that's possible to do?

         25                 MR. SHUFRO:  I shared your confusion.
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          2    It was not, at one point he did say that the

          3  agency did collect all the information in Section

          4  one, which I assume means the entire nine pieces of

          5  information.  In which case, if that is being

          6  transmitted to him in some form by the agencies,

          7  that should be available. Now, he may be correct

          8  that some of this takes some time to organize and to

          9  analyze, but it may be that if you were to come to

         10  us and say this needs to be computerized.  Well,

         11  that might be something that the City might find

         12  useful in the long run doing. But the way in which

         13  he's coming to you from my perspective, is to say

         14  you know, we're not going to do it, we're not

         15  interested in doing it, and there's no value to it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Certainly it

         17  was difficult to try to understand that.  I just

         18  wanted to ask you if, because you deal with these

         19  issues all the time.  You heard what I said, you

         20  heard what he said.  I was wondering if there was

         21  something that I was just failing to grasp that you

         22  could --

         23                 MR. SHUFRO:  It is not clear to me

         24  from what he said.  It is clear that they're going

         25  through that record and extracting some and not
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          2  other pieces of that information.  So, why they

          3  can't extract it all, I don't know.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Is it

          5  possible that they're actually in non- compliance

          6  with Local Law 41 because they're not getting all

          7  the data or whatever?  It was surely difficult to

          8  make out, but I think your point is similar to my

          9  point.  That if we had a collaborative endeavor and

         10  we're all looking at the same thing, we all want to

         11  figure out a way to make a safer workplace,

         12  healthier employees, less job accidents, less

         13  Workers Compensation payouts, then we should work

         14  together in the spirit of collaboration to sort of

         15  get to that goal.  And until we get that level of

         16  collaboration, then we can sit down with the

         17  appropriate people at the table to craft that

         18  report, then I think that goal will remain a far

         19  cry, and I'm certainly very gratified by the

         20  response of the Chairman to endeavor, to figure out

         21  some way we can all get together and try to produce

         22  something that will be meaningful.

         23                 MR. SHUFRO:  I totally agree with

         24  you.  This hearing would not take place if they had

         25  been willing to talk over the period of time.  And
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          2  so we appreciate your moving forward on it, but I

          3  know that it's not for a lack of effort on the part

          4  of the Council to reach out to the administration.

          5  You have done that repeatedly, and we have not

          6  received any sort of interest of response from them.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right.  And

          8  as evidenced by his comment today, he wasn't even

          9  willing to commit to meeting with you.  He just

         10  wants to talk to us.

         11                 MR. SHUFRO:  But he hasn't even been

         12  really willing to meet with you, either.  That's the

         13  other part of it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right.  But

         15  he at least said the words today, you know, and so,

         16  just baby steps.  Okay.

         17                 Thank you, Joel.  I appreciate it.

         18                 MR. SHUFRO:  Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         20  Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you for

         22  your input and we look forward to discussing and,

         23  not the fact that there is a report, there's

         24  actually two now, that do exist, because of the

         25  efforts of many people who are in this room, so the
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          2  fact is the idea has gone from an idea to reality,

          3  we just need to revise the reality a little bit and

          4  make it a better piece.  But thank you very much,

          5  Joel.  I appreciate it.

          6                 MR. SHUFRO: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Our next panel.

          8  Let's see here, all from CWA Local 1182, if they're

          9  still here, Roberta McKee, Janett Watson and

         10  Danielle Harrison.  They're gone, okay.

         11                 From Local 1180, Bill Henning.

         12                 Mr. Henning, good to see you again.

         13                 MR. HENNING:  Good afternoon.  Good

         14  to see you.

         15                 I am Bill Henning.  I'm Vice

         16  President of Local 1180 of the Communication Workers

         17  and in the interest of full disclosure, I Chair the

         18  Board of the New York Committee for Occupational

         19  Safety and Health.

         20                 We're here today in support of Intro

         21  507 which amends the law passed two years ago,

         22  requiring the City of New York to report on

         23  workplace injuries.  Unfortunately, the report

         24  issued last May, while in technical compliance with

         25  the law, Local Law 41, in large measures, failed to
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          2  provide meaningful information from which to build a

          3  safety program that would address the causes and

          4  types of injuries and illnesses sustained by

          5  dedicated City workers, in the performance of their

          6  duties.

          7                 That is why this bill is sorely

          8  needed.  And I want to focus specifically on one

          9  aspect of the bill which we find to be critical to

         10  the development of a successful injury prevention

         11  program.  The amendment to paragraph three of

         12  subdivision C of Section 12- 127 of the

         13  Administrative Code of the City of New York

         14  requiring that "the information gathered pursuant to

         15  paragraph one of subdivision C of this section, this

         16  aggregated by agency, job title and the City as a

         17  whole", will allow the City with the participation

         18  of its unions to devise and implement programs to

         19  protect workers from the debilitating injuries they

         20  suffer now, and to spare the City the costs

         21  associated with preventable workplace injuries and

         22  illnesses.  This provision will require the City to

         23  capture the trouble spots in Workers Compensation

         24  claims.

         25                 Are a significant number of workers
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          2  sustaining injury or illness in a particular agency

          3  or workplace?

          4                 Does a particular City job title

          5  suffer a disproportionate share of those injuries or

          6  illnesses?

          7                 Are there particular types of

          8  injuries involving specific body parts more prone to

          9  happen in one type of work?             Ironically

         10  the genesis for this kind of reporting mechanism

         11  arose out of the great failure of the Bush

         12  administration in early 2001, when in it's first

         13  substantial act of his presidency, President George

         14  W. Bush moved to rescind a recently adopted

         15  ergonomics standard.  This standard, in the planning

         16  stages for many years, would have finally set an

         17  enforceable set of rules for employers that would

         18  require them to make the job fit the worker, rather

         19  than the other way around.

         20                 Since we were then in the middle of a

         21  Mayoral election campaign, some of us asked the

         22  declared candidates whether they would adopt such a

         23  standard for the City's workforce, in order to

         24  reduce the number one cause of industrial injuries

         25  across the country.  As the largest employer in the
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          2  City, we felt this would be a shining example in the

          3  face of the Bush failure.  I think the number is

          4  somewhere in the area of 300,000 workers in the

          5  City.

          6                 The City would then join some other

          7  large employers who have implemented effective

          8  prevention programs.  But when we sought information

          9  about where and which City workers were getting

         10  hurt, we discovered the City did not track such

         11  data.

         12                 We commend Council Member Gennaro and

         13  Chair Addabbo and all of your colleagues for taking

         14  up the challenge and exercising appropriate

         15  oversight over City government in the enactment of

         16  the earlier version of this reporting requirement.

         17  This new improved version will allow us to stem the

         18  tide of injured City workers, while putting in

         19  place, an effective Risk Management program which

         20  stands to save City taxpayers the costs of medical

         21  care, replacement for lost wages and lost

         22  productivity.

         23                 As unusual as this may sound,

         24  enactment of Intro 507 will truly be a win for

         25  everybody, and we are delighted to testify in its
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          2  support.

          3                 Let me just add one other factual

          4  element to the colloquy you had with Mr. Sweeney.

          5  Not only did NYCOSH ask for input, but I also sit on

          6  the City- wide Labor Management Safety and Health

          7  Committee.  Through that Committee, which meets

          8  approximately quarterly and is a spirited group of

          9  folks, including very responsible people on both the

         10  labor and management side of the table.  In fact,

         11  I'm not sure what her title is these days, Andrea

         12  Berger, at one time represented the law Committee,

         13  the Law Department, on the Safety and Health

         14  Committee.

         15                 The fact of the matter is, we sent

         16  requests through that Committee to the Law

         17  Department.  The response that we continue to get

         18  from them is, we are going to comply with the law.

         19  Now I'm not a shrink, but I understand passive

         20  aggressive when I see it.  And I think clearly what

         21  was going on there was, like a spoiled child made to

         22  do something they don't want to, they're going to do

         23  exactly what was required, and no more.

         24                 And that's why I think that this

         25  hearing is so important.  This effort for Intro 507
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          2  is critical, so that we can move forward and develop

          3  health and safety programs to protect the workers of

          4  the City of New York.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, Mr.

          6  Henning.  And again, I appreciate you being here

          7  today and for your input.

          8                 The proper name of that Committee, do

          9  you remember? Just so I have it.

         10                 MR. HENNING:  It's the City- wide

         11  Safety and Health Committee.  It's a Labor

         12  Management Committee.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Previously, the

         14  first report, maybe even the second report, did that

         15  Committee look at the report, review it or discuss

         16  it?

         17                 MR. HENNING:  I mean, we had spent a

         18  lot of time because other members of the Committee

         19  knew that I was a broken record on that particular

         20  issue, because I kept bringing it up under new

         21  business, then bring it up under old business,

         22  what's going on with Local Law 41.  The first

         23  question we had to have answered was who was going

         24  to be responsible for compiling the data.  It came

         25  back that it was the Law Department.  We then said
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          2  that we wanted the Law Department to join with us in

          3  meeting so that we could make the report truly

          4  meaningful, because the whole purpose that we pushed

          5  for this was so that we would be able to develop,

          6  devise, implement injury prevention programs.  And

          7  as I said, the only response that came back from the

          8  Law Department, we will comply with the law, we will

          9  issue the report.  When the report came out, there

         10  were generally, on both sides of the table, labor

         11  and management, a recognition that this was

         12  virtually unusable information.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  In light of

         14  Intro 507 and what it's requesting in addition to

         15  the current report, what, if you had your chance to

         16  give input, what kind of changes would you like to

         17  see?

         18                 MR. HENNING:  Well, I think that

         19  those parts that I highlighted about identifying

         20  where people are getting hurt, who's getting hurt,

         21  and when I say, who, it would not surprise me to

         22  find that they're aggregated in certain job tasks,

         23  certain job titles. And that's, I think, the most

         24  effective way, rather than a scatter shot approach.

         25  That's the most effective way of trying to develop
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          2  programs that prevent them from getting hurt in the

          3  first instance.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 Council Member Gennaro.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman. And thank you, Mr. Henning.  I really

          9  appreciate your support and sort of keeping up the

         10  pressure on this.  We absolutely need to get this

         11  done and I'm just keeping an eye.  I actually got to

         12  duck into the hearing next door, just so I can be

         13  more present for that one. But I wanted to stay here

         14  to be able to tell you how much I appreciate your

         15  testimony and you heard the Chairman and you heard

         16  myself, and we're certainly committed to trying to

         17  get something that really will make a difference.

         18  And with us pushing and with you guys pushing,

         19  hopefully we can make something pop here.

         20                 And as I said at the beginning, I'm a

         21  former member of 1180.

         22                 MR. HENNING:  You know I knew that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Sure, but

         24  for the sake of 1180, for the sake of all of the

         25  unions, all the workers, we should just be better

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  than paying out $180 million a year worker's comp

          3  plans and all kinds of other associated costs, and

          4  the Law Department with its head in the sand.  So,

          5  we're going to do better than that,  And with your

          6  efforts, I know we will.  Thank you.

          7                 MR. HENNING:  Thank you.  We look

          8  forward to continuing to work with you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Definitely, Mr.

         10  Henning.  And again, I thank you for your time and

         11  obviously the work that the Communication Workers

         12  do, your members.  Thank you very much.

         13                 MR. HENNING:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I also want to

         15  make note that Katie Huff (phonetic) from the

         16  administration is still here.  So thank you very

         17  much for the Mayor's administration and still being

         18  here and listening.

         19                 Last person to speak signed up, David

         20  Kotelchuck, if he's still here.  David from CUNY.

         21  David, good to see you, please step forward.

         22                 MR. KOTELCHUCK:  I'll try and be

         23  brief.  Because I know we're moving to the end of

         24  the hearing.  I would like, I can even address some

         25  of the issues that Mr. Sweeney raised from an
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          2  analytical point of view.

          3                 Yes, sorry.  Is this microphone not

          4  on?  It's on, okay, good.  Thank you.

          5                 And I'll try to speed this.  You can

          6  read much of it.

          7                 My name's David Kotelchuck.  I'm

          8  Co-Chairperson to Health and Safety Committee of

          9  Professional Staff Congress of CUNY. We represent

         10  20,000 faculty and staff members at City University

         11  of New York.  And as an individual, I taught in the

         12  graduate environmental occupational health program

         13  for over 20 years.  I directed the program for 15

         14  years, I'm now a professor of health sciences at

         15  Hunter College.

         16                 I'm speaking to you today on behalf

         17  of the members of our union to tell you that our

         18  union strongly supports the passage of City Council

         19  Intro 507, amending Local Law 41.  And I talked a

         20  little bit here about the ground breaking nature of

         21  Local Law 41 and that we were supportive of

         22  yourself, Mr. Chairman and the Council Member

         23  Gennaro in pushing that.

         24                 However, and let's get to the bottom

         25  of the first page.  However, since the bill was
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          2  passed in 2004 and now the first and second annual

          3  summaries of workers comp data are released, we

          4  found serious problems in the report.  It is close

          5  to useless, the report that was released.  And I can

          6  give you some examples.

          7                 First, for example, the annual report

          8  on compensation cases, I was actually looking at the

          9  2006 report, released by the administration, was in

         10  PDF file form only, not in an electronic database

         11  format.  Thus, the data could be read as in reading

         12  a book of report, you can print the data, you have

         13  it there, but it's not electronically extracted from

         14  this file for analysis.

         15                 What is a PDF file?  Basically

         16  they're giving you a photograph.  They're giving you

         17  a photograph of 500 pages of data and said, analyze

         18  it.  Well, in real terms, it's very, very difficult

         19  to do.  You'd have to copy each line and put it into

         20  something.  The fact is, that this report was

         21  entered into some sort of database.  It was Excel,

         22  it was SPSS.  And then they could have sent that

         23  file to the Mayor and have that accessible to all of

         24  us.  Then we can go into our computers and we can

         25  say, how many accidents occurred on this street, or
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          2  in this building?  Or, how many City University

          3  people who are lab technicians were injured? They

          4  handle a lot of toxic materials and bio hazards.

          5  Well, we couldn't do that because all we have is a

          6  photograph.  And either I have, or somebody sits

          7  down and copies those pages into a file, but it is

          8  really perverse, not to allow us to have that file.

          9  That, and responding to Councilman Gennaro's

         10  concern, that takes them zero effort.  Because the

         11  file exists now.  And all they have to do is put it

         12  in a form, not photograph every page, right?  But

         13  actually give us the file.  And that's what people

         14  do when they send information in academic circles,

         15  for example, when you want to analyze things.  You

         16  send the data and the Federal government sends data

         17  in report form, in such, that those reports are

         18  readable.

         19                 I want to make one suggestion for an

         20  amendment that would strengthen it, I think.  May I

         21  note here, second page, first full paragraph, that

         22  Intro 507, item three, currently says "such reports

         23  shall be transmitted in written and electronic

         24  format to the Mayor, etc."  It may be argued, and it

         25  was by Mr. Sweeney, that the initial report to the
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          2  Mayor was in electronic format and he kept saying,

          3  oh, I've given it to you electronically.  But it's

          4  not useful for data analysis.  He knows that full

          5  well.  And the Mayor's office should know that.

          6                 May I suggest that if the wording of

          7  this section were changed by inserting the word

          8  database after electronic, this would clarify it.

          9  That is, item three should read, such reports shall

         10  be transmitted in written, truthfully, I think you

         11  mean printed, in printed and electronic database

         12  format.  That way, if it's in a database format, it

         13  can be used by people for analysis and that's what

         14  we want.

         15                 Right now, for example, just to show

         16  you what's happening, how useless this is.  I come

         17  from Hunter College.  I've been there 20 years.  I

         18  know lots and lots of the employees.  There were 20

         19  injuries at Hunter College last year.  Fine.  Now

         20  there happen to be several unions.  My union, DC37,

         21  Teamsters, there were a couple of others, the

         22  engineers are in their own union.  So there are a

         23  bunch of unions.  I have no idea whether our members

         24  are being affected.  I'm head of our Health and

         25  Safety Committee and I want to find out where our
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          2  members are having problems.  I want to find out, we

          3  may only have one college lab technician injured at

          4  Hunter.  Maybe, I don't know.  I can't tell from the

          5  report.  But suppose that same injury occurred at

          6  five or six other different campuses.  That would

          7  tell me that we've got to look at the CLTs, they

          8  generally do similar things on different campuses

          9  and we could begin to deal in labor management terms

         10  with the problems.  And actually, that's what I

         11  want, that's what your adding of the job title will

         12  do.  It will help in that process and we, our union,

         13  very strongly supports that.

         14                 Suffice it to say, that Intro 507

         15  amends City Law 41 fully in the spirit in which the

         16  original law was passed.  I, too agree that it was a

         17  win, win situation.  It will help us who work in

         18  union health and safety committees, diagnose

         19  problems and deal with them, and it will help the

         20  City by reducing injuries of workers on the job and

         21  improve productivity.

         22                 Thank you all for having this hearing

         23  and you have our support for the future in trying to

         24  pass this bill.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Kotelchuck.

          3                 Mr. Kotelchuck, one quick question.

          4  Internally, CUNY, do they track injuries at all?

          5                 MR. KOTELCHUCK:  They do.  But they

          6  do not do it centrally.  I have to call each one of

          7  the 19 campuses to find out what happened that year.

          8    And so I can't, and I've tried to do that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So, each campus

         10  does their own?

         11                 MR. KOTELCHUCK:  Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Not

         13  collectively.

         14                 MR. KOTELCHUCK:  That's right.  This

         15  report is the first collective report.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That would

         17  solve the problem. The report would solve the

         18  problem.

         19                 MR. KOTELCHUCK:  That's a help.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

         21                 Again, I appreciate your input and I

         22  look forward to working with you and discussing this

         23  matter with you as we go forward with the

         24  administration.

         25                 MR. KOTELCHUCK:  Great.  Thank you so

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          4  much for your time.

          5                 There being no other witnesses,

          6  again, I thank everyone for being here and again,

          7  we're hopeful that we have started a process here

          8  with the administration today that hopefully we can

          9  make this report be a better report, a more useful

         10  tool for our City workers, and obviously financially

         11  for the City, as well, as it pays out a lot of money

         12  for Workers Compensation claims.

         13                 Again, I want to thank Council Member

         14  Gennaro, a member of this Committee and an

         15  interested party in this issue. So, I thank him for

         16  his efforts.

         17                 Thank you very much, everyone.  Have

         18  a great day. Meeting adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 2:55 p.m.)
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